
TOWN OF KENT
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

41 Kent Green Boulevard

P.O. Box 678

Kent, CT 06757
Phone (860) 927-4625 Fax (860) 927-4541

MARCH 9.2Q17 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

The Town of KentPlanning andZoning Commission held a regular meeting on Thursday, March 9,2017
at 7:00 p.m. in the Kent Town Hall.

1. CALL TO ORDER

Mr. Johnsoncalled the meeting to orderat 7:02 p.m.

2. ROLL CALL AND APPOINTMENT OF ALTERNATES TF RKOTTTREn

Commissioners Present: John Johnson,Chairman; Darrell Chemiske, Alice Hicks,Anne McAndrew,
Matt Winter

Staff Present; Donna Hayes,Land Use Administrator

Mr. JohnsonelevatedMs. McAndrew to votingstatus.

3. READING AND APPROVAL OF MINUTES:

3.A. Special Meeting Minutes ofFebruary 16,2017.

Ms. McAndrew moved to approve the Special Meeting Minutes ofFebruary 16, 2017, as written. Mr.
Chemiske secondedand the motion carried unanimously.

4. PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS fORAL>:

No action taken.

5. OLD BUSINESS:

5.A. PUBLIC HEARINGS (Possibility of closure, discussion and decision on the
following):

No action taken.

5.B. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE DECISION

5.B.1, Rewrite ofZoning Regulations

TOWN OF KENT PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES FOR MARCH 9, 2017
These are draft minutes. Corrections may be made by the Commission at the subsequent

meeting. Please refer to subsequent meeting minutes for possible corrections and approvalof
these minutes.

PAGEl



Ms. Hayes advised the Commission that a special meeting will be held on March 16"' at 7:00 p.m. to
review ^e comparison sheet she prepared.

6. NEW BUSINESS!

6jV. public hearings (Possibility of closure, discussion and decision on the
following):

6.A.I. Application #*s 09-17SP and 10-17C, The Marvelwood School, Inc., 473 Skiff
Mountain Road, Map 7 Block 17 Lot 1, renovations and addition ofa performing
and fine arts center with associated parking to existing gymnasium.

Mr. Johnson opened the public hearing at7:0Sp.m. and read the legal notice into the record.

Ms. Hayes explained that the School was in front of the Commission back in 2014 for the same
application. The Commission had approved the proposal at that time but the special permit was never
filed on the land records and had expired. Both Mr. Winter and Mr. Chemiske asked why the special
permit had never been filed. Ms. Hayes said that she did not know.

Mr. David Woods, of Marsh + Woods Architects, LLC, was present to address the Commission. He
explained that he thought the reason the special permitwas never filed was becausefund raising for the
projectwas on going, they were in the process of hiringa directorof the arts which is now doneand the
School now has a substantialamountof the fundsavailableto start the project. Mr. Woods continued that
it has taken all this time to work with the DEEP due to personnel changes and the requirement that they
are requiring a review ofthe entire campus.

Mr. Woods explained the changes as a result of the new director of the arts and the theater consultant.
The biggestchange is the fly which is at the frontof the stage. The lighting is prettymuchthe same. The
project consists of the renovation of the old girls* gym and an addition of an arts center. The restrooms
were shifted to provide more office space; the scene shop and props/costume areas were also increased in
size. All of these changeshave increased the size of the addition. The block box theaterhad a change to
the height ofapproximately 2* or 33* total height to accommodatelighting scaffolding. Adding insulation
to the outside of the roof might add another foot to the height. The use ofthe black box theater's use has
also been further designated. The class room wing's height will remain at 25'. The fly has changed
based on changes to the actual theater. Previouslythe seating for the theater would rise from the existing
concrete deck of the gym. The theater consultant recommended digging out the fh)nt section of seating
with a cross isle havingthe stage levelwith the existingconcrete deck. It better accommodates handicap
accessibility. This change also enabled the scene shop and costume shop to be level which allowed for a
basement of 11' instead of a basement under the raised stage. This change also eliminates the need for
exterior pinning of the back of the existing gym. The height of the fly is changed from the originally
proposed height to SO*. Mr. Woods pointed out that the previous top of the peak was 51* and the
midpoint was 51.45*. The 50* height is more uniform and set so far back from the front of the buildingit
is almost not visible. The courtyard was changedby the arts advisoiy board. It was their suggestion that
it be entirely closed in because it would allow it to be used all seasons of the year. This area could be
used for art galleiy exhibitions or music sessions. The front lobby glass enclosure was also increased by
extending out it just past the front of the building. The atrium area will be covered by a flat roof in order
to enable the building to be more environmentally friendly. The current thinking is that it be covered by
solar panels; engineeringdesign hasjust begun. They are also thmkingabout installinggeothermal wells.
These two energy efficient measures might allow for a smaller basement. This roof area will not be seen.

TOWN OF KENT PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES FOR MARCH 9,2017
These are draft minutes. Corrections may be made by the Commission at the subsequent

meeting. Please refer to subsequentmeetingminutes for possiblecorrections and approval of
these minutes.

PAGE 2



Mr. Chemiske asked if there would be any light emittance from the fly. Mr. Woods said no. Ms. Hayes
asked if the fly was always in that location. Mr. Woods said that it was in that location but it was peaked
and turned.

Mr. Winterasked if the mechanical spaces on either side of the theater would be big enough to handle
heatingand cooling. Mr. Woodssaid that he thought it wouldbe fine and that the ventingwouldcarried
in the ceilings. They still have not figured out where the mechanicals will go from the black box. Mr.
Winter asked if the mechanicals wouldbe seen if they are placed on the flat roof. Mr. Woodsaid that the
only place where it might be seen would be behind the black box, but if that turns out to be the case, he
will put them in the attic space above the bathrooms. The other issue that still needs to be discussed is
whetheror not the duct work can be run in a trougharoundthe perimeterofthe space.

Ms. Hayes asked if Mr. Woods could talk about the lighting on the outside of the building. Mr. Woods
presented the Commission with a lighting sheet. He explained that the LS fixture is a flood light and only
6 ofthem are emergency only lights. They will only go on in case ofan emergency. Eight will provide
some illumination to the students. Most of the LSs are located along the back and side of the building
providing lighting to the service drive. They are intended to be cutoff and aimable toward to the
courtyard. The emergency lights are located at the exits. The L2s are a small fixture with a downlight
component. The LI are in the roofs. There was an increase of one in the total number of bollards. This
additional light is placed down by the black box; the others are in their original location. The uplights
were discussed in 2014 and are placed around the front entiy galleiy. The agreement was that they
uplight to the roof. That area is enclosed in channel glass which is slightly opaque but you can*t see in.
The intent is that they make the area glow when there is a special event. The plan is to make the box
glow when there is a special event and also make the roof glow. The lighting consultant is currently
looking at this area and they might remove the uplights since they are competing. Mr. Woods would like
to leave them in for now. Under the previous approval, it was conditioned that the lights go offat 9:30 or
at least 30 minutes after an event has ended. The School is okay with that condition. The floodlights
aroundthe backofthe building will probably be on a timerand motiondetector. Mr. Johnsonasked if the
motion detector lights will remainon all night long. Mr. Woodssaid that shortly after the 2014 approval,
someonehad tried to break into a couple of the buildings and the School feels that the motiondetection
lighting was instrumental in preventing the intruders from being successful.

Mr. Johnson asked Ms. Hayes if there was anything special that had to be done with regard to the height
ofthe building. Ms. Hayes referred him to §5.10.

Mr. Woods saidthat there were special conditions thatwere included inthe 2014 Resolution of Approval
that the School is still in agreement with. With regard to runoff, Mr. Woods referred the question to
Jeremy Oskandy, EIT with ArthurH. Howland & Associates. He explained that with the new addition,
the amountof water heading towardthe east wouldbe reduced.

Mr. Chemiske asked if any additional drainage volumes would need to be addressed based on the new
depth of the basement. Mr.Oskandy said it would be easier to explain the workto be done. Heshowed
the Commission the new driveway and the addition of an accessdrive to the back of the gym. This will
provide access to the loading area for the fly. The new basement location eliminates ^e need for a
connection to the existing footing drains. Mr. Johnson asked howthat is possible if the basement is going
down 3' deeper. Mr. Oskandy explained that the new drain will be coming from the opposite comer
which eliminates the need for such a deep trench. Because of the impervious surface increase and the
increase to the sizeofthe building, the original sizeof the detention pondhadto be increased.

TOWN OF KENT PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES FOR MARCH 9,2017

Theseare draftminutes. Corrections maybe madeby the Conmiission at the subsequent
meeting. Please refer to subsequent meeting minutes for possible corrections and approval of

these minutes.
PAGE 3



Ms. McAndrewasked if the access drivewayat the back of the buildingwas large enough for a fire truck
to turn around. Mr. Oskandy said that the fire truck could get back there now but there is not enough
room for it to turn around. Woods commented that there is actually more access to the back of the
building than there was originally. The area is big enough for a small box or panel truck to turn around.
Mr. Oskandy said that the curve on the side of the building was widened to accommodate a fire truck.
The actual size ofthe access driveway is 15* and was not designed for two-way traffic.

With regard to the plantings around the detention pond, Mr. Oskandy referred to Ms. Denise Lord's
original comments and increased the amount and types ofplantingsaccordingly.

Mr. Oskandy said that the detention pondwill handleapproximately 95% of the runoff. Mr. Winterasked
if the existing eastern stormwater basin would be able to handle the additional 5%. Mr. Oskandy said that
the did not run those calculations but feels that it would be sufficient. Mr. Chemiske asked if the runoff

from the tennis courts would be impacting the detention pond. Mr. Oskandy replied that almost all ofthe
runoff from the tennis courts would be going to the detention pond and the increased size will be able to
handle it.

With regard to the lighting, Mr. Oskandy said that the fixtures he has on his plan are a little differentthan
Mr. Woods plan. Mr. Woods plan would override what is being provided by Howland. Mr. Oskandy
said that the emergency lights are not modeled on their plan. There is practically no over light from the
proposed fixtures and that the addition of the fixtures in the back is because of the increase to the length
of tiie access drive. Mr. Woods said that the bollards that they are proposing are 19" high and will be on
timers to shut off at 9:30 p.m.

Mr. Oskandy said that he did not believe there would be any spillage at the back of the building because
of the elevation of the tennis courts. Mr. Woods said that they are spotted underneath the roof overhang.
Ms. McAndrew asked if the tennis courts had lights and Mr. Woods said no.

Mr. Winter asked if they were proposing any changes to the pole mounted lights. Mr. Woods said that he
would like to change them but nothing is plannedat this point in time.

Mr. Winter asked if Mr. Oskandy could explain the sanitaiy system. Mr. Oskandy said that the original
proposal had the sewer line coming out ofthe building, across the front lawn and into the existingsystem.
The DEEP is now requiring that the system actually exit the building in the front and run around the
outside ofthe addition and into the septic system on the northeast side of the gym. Mr. Oskandysaid that
he did not know if that system would have to be added to or if a newly constructed system would have to
be created. With the changes to die personnel at the DEEP the system is very complicatedbut Howland
has responded to the comments and suggestions proposed by the DEEP.

Mr. Johnson asked about conditions to the usage. Ms. Hayes said that there were none. She explained
that she took the original Resolution of Approval from 2014, updated it to correspond to the new sheets
submitted and kept the original conditions. Ms. Hayes readthe conditionsand noted two possible issues:
the lighting sheet; and the condition that the lights at the front entrance not wash on the glass wall. Mr.
Woods said that the lighting sheet should be changed to reflect the lighting sheet prepared by Marsh +
Woods and that he did not believe that there was any way to keep the light from washing on the glass
panels. The intent of the fixtures is to illuminate the canopy but the design of the light will cause some
splay to reach the glass panels. He said that there might be a change to the type of lighting after he has
more meetings with the lighting consultant. Mr. Winter said that it might be a good idea to still refer to

TOWN OF KENT PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES FOR MARCH 9,2017
These are draft minutes. Corrections may be made by the Commission at the subsequent

meeting. Please refer to subsequentmeetingmmutesfor possible correctionsand approval of
these minutes.

PAGE 4



111.3. Mr. Woods said that they do not match. Mr. Oskandy said that his plan is only representative and
not the actual fixture. Mr. Winter said that he would like to have an actual representationofwhat is being
used. Mr. Woods asked that Mr. Oskandy change his sheet and Mr. Oskandy said that they could write a
letter explaining that his lighting is only representative. Mr. Winter said that they would be willing to
accept such a letter.

Ms. Hayes said that the next condition of approval was the submission of the type of generator and any
sound attenuation systems that would be installed. Mr. Woods said the generator is now just an option
and he is not sure if the school will be buying it now or later. When the gym was built, they did install
stubs and the school put the generator in at a later time. Mr. Johnson asked if the generator was a part of
this application. Mr. Woods said that it was but did not think the school would purchase it at this point in
time but would like to include it as part ofthe approval.

Mr. Johnson asked if these plans had been sent to Anchor Engineering for review. Ms. Hayes said that
they had not and §17.4.2.a. requires that the plans be reviewed for structures 3,000 sfor more. Ms. Hayes
said that she did not anticipate a lengthyreview since Ms. Lord from Anchor Engineering had done one in
2014 when the original project was first submitted.

Ms. Hayes asked Mr. Woods he would explain how they were planning on handling the 5,080 cy offill to
be removed from the site. Mr. Woods said that it would go offsite and Mr. Oskandy added that there was
a possibility that it would be needed on site. Mr. Woods said that he hoped the school would be able to
find a place to use it on site. He suggestedputtingit at the back of the cafeteria because he did not think
the school would want to pay to have it trucked off site. Mr. Woods said he would discuss it with the
school. Mr. Chemiske asked if the Commissionwould need to know where it was going. Ms. Hayes said
that she would like to see where it would be going because of the amount of wetlands on the property.
Mr. Winter commented that he would like to see what type of erosion and sediment controls will be
placed around it until the area is stabilized.

Ms. Hayes asked how they would be handling the parking since they increased the size of the building.
Mr. Woods said that the prior application was for 300 seats; this application would be for 350 - 360 seats.
He continued that the school guaranteedthat there would not be simultaneousevents at the theater and the
black box theater and that they might have the graduation ceremony at the main theater which would not
reach the 300 mark. The reason for the size of the theater is based on the advice fi-om the theater

consultant who stated that 350 would be a better size should the school decide to affiliate itself with the
Sharon Playhouse summer theater at some point in time. The size of the theater is not driven by the
school population. Mr. Wood said that the previous application provided parking along the drive, some
hardening measures along the roadway, overflow parking at the horseshoe on the dorm side and parking
behind the classrooms by the new gym. Ms. Hayes commentedthat there is only one handicapspace by
the black box and asked if there would be additional handicap spaces provided closer to the theater. Mr.
Wood said that there is handicap accessibility on the other side of the building. Mr. Chemiske said that
there is plenty of parking due to the size of the campus but would not want to see emergency vehicles
hampered by guests parking on the roadway because tiiey did not want to walk far. Mr. Woods suggested
addingthat the schoolput up no parking signsas a condition of approval.

Ms. Hicks asked if there was seating in the gym. Mr. Woods said that there are pull out bleacherson one
side and a graduation ceremony could be held there. He continued that he did go to a dinner there when
the gym was first opened. The dinner was set up on the gym fioor and there were approximately 200
peoplethere. Ms. Hicksasked if there wasany possibility that it wouldbe used as the sametime as either
the theater or the black box. Mr. Woods said no.

TOWN OF KENT PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES FOR MARCH 9,2017
These are draft minutes. Corrections may be made by the Commission at the subsequent

meeting. Pleasereferto subsequent meeting minutes for possible corrections andapproval of
these minutes.

PAGES



With regard to Ms. Hayes* last comment in her staffreport, Mr. Johnson said he did nothear anything
that would indicated thatthe new facility would beused for something other than anaccessory use to the
school. Ms. Hayes agreed.

Mr. Winter said that he would be in favor of designating handicap parking spaces at the apex of the
horseshoe temporarily during any event. He also liked the idea of hardening the edges of that area as
well.

Ms.Hayes asked howhighthe retaining wallwould be. Mr. Oskandy saidthat it would run from 2' to 6*
to 9.5*. Mr. Winter asked if the end of the access drive would be curb only and Mr. Oskandy said yes.
Curbing the area will help direct any runoff from the tenniscourts.

Mr. Winter asked what the underground utility was. Mr. Oskandy said that he did not know but that it
would remain the same. He believes it was picked up from a historical map and might have provided
service to the tennis courts when theywere lighted. Mr. Winter asked if a supplemental transformer will
be installed. Mr. Oskandy said thathe believed that theexisting electricity will be buried andMr. Woods
said the service will be upgraded.

Mr. Johnson stated that because the plans were going to be reviewed by Anchor Engineering, the public
hearing should remain open. Mr. Oskandy replied that would give him an opportunity to revise the
lighting plan and that Ms. Hayes would update the Resolution of Approval. Ms. Hayes asked Mr.
Oskandy to sendPDF's to Denise Lordat Anchor Engineering.

Mr. Winter moved to tableApplication §'s 09-17SP and lO-HC, The Marvelwood School, Inc., 473 Skiff
Mountain Road, Map 7 Block17 Lot 1, renovations and addition ofa performing andfine arts center
withassociatedparking to existing gymnasium to the nextregular meeting. Mr. Cherniske seconded and
the motion carried unanimously.

6.B. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE DECISION

6.B.I. Application #11-17C, 24 South Main Street Kent, LLC, 24 South Main Street,
construction of 3-bay garage with storage and a change of use from
restaurant/apartment to restaurant/apartment/contractor business, Map 19 Block
13 Lot 44.

Mr. John Gleason, owner of24 South Main Street, was present to address the Commission.

Ms. Hayes told the Commission that Mr. Gleason purchased the property in question and plans on
converting a small area in the restaurant to his contractor's office and would also like to put up a detached
3-bay pole bam/garage with storage above. The application is for a change of use and for the
construction of the pole bam/garage.

Mr. Winter asked where the access to the garage bays would be and Mr. Gleason said that the doors
would be facing Route 7/South Main Street

Mr. Winter asked Ms. Hayes if she had any information regarding the subdivision and asked if there was
anything that should be of concern. Ms. Hayes replied that she did not know the complete history of the

TOWN OF KENT PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES FOR MARCH 9,2017
These are draft minutes. Corrections may be made by the Commission at the subsequent

meeting. Please refer to subsequentmeetingminutesfor possible corrections and approval of
these minutes.

PAGE 6



subdivision; only that in 1990 a variance was granted for a re-subdivision. This new application meets
the current regulationsand the past re-subdivision has no impact on it.

Ms. Hicks asked where the parking will be once the building is constructed. Mr. Gleason said that the
additional parkingspaceson the southern side of the building were available to replacethose takenup by
the construction. He continued that additional parking spaces could be created once the neighboring
property completes their retaining wall. Mr. Gleasonasked if the bays in the garage could be included in
the parking space count.

Mr. Winterasked if he wouldneedto appearbeforethe ARB. Ms. Hayessaid that he would.

Ms. Hayes referred the Commission to the proposed location of the dumpster. After speaking with Mr.
Gleason, it was determined that he could possibly go to a smaller dumpster that could be rolled to the
front of the property for pick up allowing cars to park along the northern side of the new garage. Mr.
Gleason commented that smaller dumpsters would require the refuse to be picked up more often which
would eliminateany odorsor rodentproblems.

Mr. Winter asked what the parking requirement would be. Mr. Gleason said that the restaurant would be
59 seats. Ms. Hayessaid that wouldrequire20 parking seatsand 2 for the employees. Loosing13spaces
would still leave Mr. Gleason with enough spaces. Ms. McAndrew asked where the house next door
would park. Ms. Hayesexplained that the house next door had 4 spaces on the propertybut there is a 3
space, undefined parking easement. Mr. Winter did the calculation and determined that the property
contained enough parkingspaces to accommodate the changeofuse and the new garage.

Mr. Johnsonasked what Mr. Gleason planned on doingwith regardto lighting. Mr. Gleason said that he
planned on putting motion detection li^ts on the building for security reasons.

Mr. Winter asked if Mr. Gleason planned on keeping all of his business vehicles on site. Mr. Gleason
replied that a couple of the workers have been bringing them home since his last move. Two wouldcome
and go and one wouldbe storedthere. They would be parkedinside. Therewould be enoughroom since
he has cut down on his inventory.

Mr. Winter asked if Mr. Gleason planned on putting gutters on the new structure. Mr. Gleason said that
he would add them but that it would sheet flow as there are no footings. Mr. Gleason said that the
property is veiy flat Mr. Johnson said that he thought the Building Official would require gutters but
asked if the gutters would drainto the neighbor on the north. Ms. Hayes askedthat Mr. Gleason keepthat
in mind.

Mr. Winter asked about the loading area for the restaurant. Mr. Gleason replied that their delivers are
very minimal. The drivers park right out fi-ont and the delivery man goes in the front door. There is an
alley to the back, but that leads directly into the kitchen.

Hicks moved to approve waivers to §4.5.1., 4.5.5., 4.5.7., 4.5.8., 4.5.9., 4.5.10,, 4.5.11., 4.5.12. and
4.5.15, Mr. Chemiske secondedand the motion carried unanimously.

Mr. Winter moved to approve Application ^11-17C, 24 South Main Street Kent, LLC, 24 South Main
Street, construction of 5-bqy garage with storage and a change of use from restaurant/cpartment to
restaurant/apartment/contractor business. Map 19 Block 15 Lot 44. Mr. Chemiske seconded and the
motion carried unanimously.

TOWN OF KENT PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES FOR MARCH 9,2017
These are draft minutes. Corrections may be made by the Commission at the subsequent

meeting. Please refer to subsequent meeting minutes for possible corrections and approvalof
these minutes.

PAGE?



7. STAFF REPORT:

7.A. Land Use Clerk

Ms. Hayes reported that the candidate she hiredrescinded her acceptance of the job offer becauseshe had
received and accepted an offer of full time employment. She received two new resumes that looked
promising and asked that the Interviewing Subcommittee be reinstated so that interviews could be
scheduled. Her plan would be to contact NWCOG to see if any other Town might have someone who
was looking for additional hours. She will also contact Warren and see if they would be willing to do
some sort of a job share.

Ms. McAndrew movedto create an Interviewing Subcommittee consisting ofMr. Johnson and Mr. Winter.
Mr. Cherniske seconded and the motion carried unanimously.

8. REPORT OF OFFICERS AND COMMITTEES:

No action taken.

9. OTHER COMMUNICATIONS AND CORRESPONDENCE:

9.A. Administrative Permits and Certificates of Compliance

No action taken.

9.B. Regional Plan ofConservation and Development 2017 - 2027 Resident Input Survey

No action taken.

9.C. Leggette, Brashears & Graham, Inc., Results of Water-Quality Sampling (Woodward and
Edelman), Audubon International Monitoring Program, Bull's Bridge GolfClub

Ms. Hayes explained that testing had been done on the Woodward and Edelman properties and that if a
Commissioner would like to review the entire test result, she had them in her office. As was previously
approved, the next test will not take place until 2021.

9.D. Monthly Financials-FY '16-'17; July through February

No action taken.

10. ADJOURNMENT

Mr. Winter moved to adjourn at 8:55p.m. Ms. Hicks secondedand the motion carried unanimously.

Respectfully submitted,

Donna M. Hayes, CZEO
Land Use Administrator

Q
cc
o:c irt
OGC
UJLU

TOWN OF KENT PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION —

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES FOR MARCH 9, 2017 M
These are draft minutes. Corrections may be made by the Commission at the subseq^^n^

meeting. Please refer to subsequent meeting minutes for possible corrections and appr6^al of
these minutes.

PAGES

>.
GO


